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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of STUTSMIAN RURAL WATER
DISTRICT as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in
net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 3, 2011
on our consideration of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion
on the intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the

results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to eXpress an opinion or provide
any assurance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT - continued

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of STUTSMAN
RURAL WATER DISTRICT as a whole. The supplementary information as listed in the contents is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT. The supplementary information and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material

respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole,
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SCHAUER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

October 3, 2011
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2011 and 2010

This section of the District’s annual financial report presents an analysis of the District’s financial
performance during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. This information is presented in
conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

The District’s net assets increased by $845,288 or 16% from $5,228,720 to $6,074,008.
Operating revenues increased by $116,540 or 13.6% from $860,037 to $976,577.
Operating expenses increased by $136,954 or 16.7 % from $820,229 to $957,183.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the District delivered 91.2 million gallons of water.

a 8 @

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of the following three parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Information. The financial statements include notes which explain in detail
some of the information included in the financial statements.

Required Financial Statements

The financial statements of the District report information utilizing the full accrual basis of accounting. The
financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The statement of net assets includes information on the District’s assets and liabilities and provides
information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to District

creditors (liabilities).

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets identifies the District’s revenues and
expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. This statement provides information on the
District’s operations over the past two fiscal years and can be used to determine whether the District has
recovered all of its actual and projected costs through user fees and other charges.

The third statement is the statement of cash flows. This statement provides information on the District’s
cash receipts, cash payments and changes in cash resulting from operations, investments and financing
activities. From the statement of cash flows, the reader can obtain comparative information on the source
‘and use of cash and the change in the cash balance for each of the last two fiscal years.

Financial Analysis of the District

The statement of net assets (page 7) and the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in nets assets
(page 8) provide an indication of the District’s financial condition and also indicates if the financial
condition of the District improved during the last fiscal year. The District’s net assets reflect the difference
between assets and liabilities. An increase in net assets over time typically indicates an improvement in

financial condition.



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

NET ASSETS
A summary of the District’s Statements of Net Assets is presented below:

Table 1
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011 and 2010

Dollar Percent
2011 2010 Change Change
ASSETS
Current assets $ 1,208,101 $ 691,268 $ 516833 74.8%
Other assets 334,855 303,790 31,065 10.3
Capital assets 11,732,579 10,979,287 753,292 6.9
Total Assets $13,275,535 $11,974,345  $ 1,301,190 10.9%
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities § 715890 $ 563,729 § 152,161 27.0%
Non-current liabilities 6,485,637 6,181,896 303,741 5.0
Total Liabilities 7,201,527 6,745,625 455,902 6.8
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of :
related debt 4,585,635 4,299,793 285,842 6.7
Restricted for debt service 280,652 254,004 26,648 10.5
Unrestricted 1,207,721 674,923 532,798 79.0
Total Net Assets 6,074,008 5,228,720 845,288 16.2
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $13,275,535 $11,974,345 § 1,301,190 10.9%

~ As the above table indicates, total assets increased by $1,301,190 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
This is comprised of an increase in current assets of $516,833, an increase in other assets of $3 1,065 and an

increase in capital assets of $753,292.

Total liabilities reflect an increase of $455,902. This includes an increase of $303,741 in long-term debt as
the District financed part of the Great River Energy water supply and continued to make the scheduled debt
service payments on existing debt and an increase of $152,161 in current liabilities reflecting an increase in

accounts payable incurred primarily for construction projects.

Table I also indicates that total net assets increased by $845,288. This increase is the result of operations,
non-operating activity and a net increase in member capital.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets in Table IT identify the various revenue
and expense items which impact the change in net assets.

Table II indicates that the District’s total operating revenues increased by $116,540 or 13.6% to $976,577
from $860,037 in the prior year. Total expenses increased by $136,954 or 16.7% from the prior year. Non-
operating revenue increased by $852,899 primarily because of $325,678 of grant revenue and $533,859
additional net lease income from the GRE project,

4.



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Table I

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES INNET ASSETS
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Dollar Percent

2011 2010 Change Change
Operating revenues $ 976,577 $ 860,037 $116,540 13.6%
Operations and maintenance

expenses 545,762 461,470 84,292 18.3

Administrative expenses 411,421 358,759 52,662 14.7

957,183 820,229 136,954 16.7
Non-operating revenue (expenses) 784,844 (68.,055) 852,899 n/a
Income (loss) before contributions §04,238 (28,247) 832,485 n/a
Capital contributions 41,050 12,500 28,550 n/a
Change in net assets 845,288 (15,747 861,035 n/a
Total net assets — beginning 5,228,720 5,244,467 (15,747) n/a
Total net assets — ending 56,074,008 $5,228,720 $845,288 16.2%

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2011, the District’s investment in capital assets totaled $11,732,579, which is an increase of
$753,292 or 6.9 % over the capital asset balance of $10,979,287 at June 30, 2010. Capital assets include all
of the District’s major capital assets, including land, buildings, lines, reservoirs, wells, equipment, tools and
vehicles. A comparison of the District’s capital assets over the past two years is presented in Table ITI.

Included among the capital projeéts completed during the fiscal year was the GRE lines and pumping
(34,475,492), 2 new vehicles ($68,123), meters and meter assembly parts ($10,802) and other miscellaneous

items.

Table III
CAPITAL ASSETS
June 30, 2011 and 2010
Dollar Percent
2011 2010 Change Change
Land § 50,692 $ 50,692 $ %
Office and shop building 294,106 294,106
Lines and equipment 12,619,307 8,133,013 4,486,294 552
Reservoirs and equipment 3,074,505 3,068,229 6,276 2
Wells and equipment 63,127 63,127
Office equipment 51,076 47,194 3,882 8.3
Equipment and tools 168,420 114,064 54,356 47.7
Construction in progress 796,642 4,232,891 (3,436,249) (81.2)
Total 17,117,875 16,003,316 1,114,559 7.0
Less accumulated depreciation (5,385,296) (5,024,029) (361,267) 7.2
Total Capital Assets (net of
depreciation) $ 11,732,579 $ 10,979,287 $ 753,292 6.9%

-5-



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Long-Term Debt

As of June 30, 2011, the District had $6,912,976 in outstanding long-term debt compared to $6,596,277 as
of June 30, 2010. The increase of $316,699 represents additional debt to finance the Great River Energy
Spiritwood Station project construction and Phase I expansion less principal payments made during the

fiscal year,

2011 2010

Bank of North Dakota b 742,871 h 781,730
Bank of North Dakota 58,530 61,144
ND Public Finance Agency 375,000 410,000
ND Public Finance Agency 151,000 160,000
ND Public Finance Agency 943,000 995,000
ND Public Finance Agency 4,213,805 4,113,649
Unison Bank 47,482 74,754
ND Rural Water Finance Corporation 381,288

§ 6,912,976 $ 6,596,277

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt is provided in note 7 (page 16) of the financial
statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

A 7% increase in revenue is expected this year with the connection of 50 new users to the water system
through Phase I of the expansion project. A 4% increase in expenses is also projected. The District does not
anticipate an increase to customer water rates before the end of the fiscal year. Construction is to begin on
Phase II of the District wide expansion project in the Spring of 2012. This Phase will be a $9.8 million
dollar project connecting 340 new users and the town of Woodworth to the water system. The project will
be 70% grant funded through the State MR & I Program (Municipal, Rural and Industrial water supply).

Additional Financial Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s customers, investors and other interested parties
with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition. Should the reader have
questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request additional financial
information, please contact the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S manager at P.O. Box 547,
Jamestown, North Dakota 58402-0547.






June 30

2011 2010
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable b 250,365 A 98,092
Customer deposits 1,350 13,050
Accrued interest payable 36,836 38,206
Bonds, notes and loans payable 427,339 414,381
Total Current Liabilities 715,890 563,729
Non-Current Liabilities:
Bonds, notes and loans payable 6,485,637 6,181,896
Total Liabilities 7,201,527 6,745,625
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,585,635 4,299,793
Restricted for debt service 280,652 254,004
Unrestricted 1,207,721 674,923
Total Net Assets 6,074,008 5,228,720

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 13,275,535 $ 11,974,345




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales | h 351,853 $ 318,478
Service charges 574,725 486,140
Other charges _ 49,999 55,419
Total Operating Revenues 976,577 860,037
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance expenses 545,762 461,470
Administrative expenses 411,421 358,759
Total Operating Expenses 957,183 820,229
Operating Income 19,394 39,808
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 9,467 14,419
Lease income 651,367 16,802
Lease expenses (141,532)
Grant income 325,678
Miscellaneous revenue (expense) 13,012
Interest expense (73,148) (99,276)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 784,844 (68,055)
Income (loss) before capital contributions 804,238 (28,247)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Net change in member fees 41,050 12,500
Total Capital Contributioqs 41,050 12,500
Change in Net Assets 845,288 (15,747)
5,228,720 5,244,467

Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending $ 6,074,008 b 5,228,720

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements






Reconcilation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities
Operating Income
- Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Schedule of Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities

Additions to construction of capital assets
Increase in Joan proceeds

Increase in grant proceeds

Customer deposit applied to receivable
Reimbursements receivable related to construction

2011 2010
19,394 39,808
288,558 275,238
(6,102) (9,590)
(2,169) 1,507
(1,582) 522
1,523 (5,922)
300 11,850
299,922 313,413
150,750 83,217
149,620
109,500
12,000
55,530



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 20190

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT was incorporated as a non-profit organization for the purpose
of providing a rural water system, including distribution lines, water wells, water storage tanks and water
conditioning facilities for the residents of rural Stutsman County. Effective September 1, 1999, it was

reorganized as a political subdivision.

A. Reporting Entity

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a
voting majority of the organization’s governing board and (1) it is able to impose its will on that
organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or
burdens on the primary government. The primary government may be financially accountable if an
organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government. STUTSMAN RURAL WATER
DISTRICT is governed by an elected seven-member board of directors. It is not a component unit of any

other government and does not have any component units under it.

B. Basis of Presentation and Accounting

The District’s financial statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The District applies all Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) statements and interpretations, and the Accounting Principles Board (APB) statements issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB

pronouncements.

All activities of the District are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. Proprietary
funds are used to account for operations that are (1) financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or (2) where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the District is determined by its measurement
focus. The transactions of the District are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operations are included on
the balance sheet. Net assets (i.c., total assets net of total liabilities) are segregated into invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted for debt service; and unrestricted components.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance
sheet date, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates are used
to determine depreciation expense, the allowance for doubtful accounts and certain claims and judgment
liabilities, among other accounts. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

- 10 -



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

C. Budgetary Accounting

The District adopts a flexible annual operating budget. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The current operating budget
details the District’s plans to earn and expend funds for charges incurred for operation, maintenance, certain
interest and general functions, and other charges for the fiscal year.

All unexpended and unencumbered appropriations in the operating budget lapse at the end of the year.

Management submits a proposed budget to the Board of Directors for approval. During the year,
managerment is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items.

D. Deposits and Investments

The District maintains deposits at depository banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System. North
Dakota laws require all public deposits to be protected by insurance, surety bond or collateral. The market
value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the deposits not covered by insurance or bonds.

Authorized collateral includes bills, notes or bonds issued by the United States government, its agencies or
instrumentalities, all bonds and notes guaranteed by the United States government, federal land bank
bonds, bonds, notes, warrants, certificates of indebtedness, insured certificates of deposit, shares of
investment companies registered under the Investment Companies Act of 1940, and all other forms of
securities issued by the State of North Dakota, whether payable from special revenues or supported by the
full faith and credit of the issuing body, and bonds issued by any other state of the United States or such

other securities approved by the banking board.

Interest rate risk. The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit risk. North Dakota State Statute limits political subdivisions to invest their surpluses in:

1. Bonds, treasury bills and notes, other securities that are a direct obligation of, or an obligation
insured or guaranteed by, the treasury of the United States, or its agencies, instrumentalities, or

organizations created by an Act of Congress.

2. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase written by a financial institution in which the
underlying securities for the agreement to repurchase are of the type listed above.

3. Certificates of deposit fully insured by the federal deposit insurance corporation or the state.

4. Obligations of the state.
The District has no investments other than demand and time deposits.

Custodial credit risk — deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
District’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit
risk. As of June 30, 2011, the District’s deposits were not fully insured or collateralized with securities held
by the financial institutions in the District’s name or guaranteed by the FDIC’s Transaction Account

Guarantee Program.

-11 -



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

D. Deposits and Investments - continued

As of June 30, 2010, the District’s deposits were fully insured or collateralized with securities held by the
financial institutions in the District’s name or guaranteed by the FDIC’s Transaction Account Guarantee

Program. (See note 2)

E. Cash Flow Information

For purposes of the . statements of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents

F. Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost and include chemicals, operating supplies and parts,

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets are carried at cost. The District defines capital assets as assets with an estimated useful life in
excess of two years. Cost includes direct labor, outside services, materials and transportation. Infrastructure
assets are capitalized along with other assets. Depreciation is calculated using straight line methods.

The estimated useful lives of the. assets are as follows:

Office and shop building 40 years
Lines and equipment 20 to 50 years
Reservoirs and equipment 10 to 50 years
Wells and equipment 20 to 40 years
Office equipment 5to 10 years
Equipment and tools 5 to 10 years

Major additions are capitalized and depreciated: maintenance and repairs, which do not improve or extend
the life of the respective assets, are expensed currently. Upon disposal of fixed properties the cost and
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts. The adjusted basis on an item traded is
applied to the property accounts, and the gain or loss of items otherwise disposed of is reflected in income.

Stutsman Rural Water District was the recipient (grantee) of a grant to aid in the construction of the water
system. Under the terms of the grant, the grantee has title to the real property as long as they continue to use
it for the purposes under the grant. If no longer needed for the original grant purpose, the grantee must
receive approval for use in projects under other federal programs that have purposes consistent with those
authorized by the grantor. When no longer needed under the above terms, the grantee shall request

disposition instructions from the grantor agency.

Nonexpendable personal property shall be used for the project. If no longer needed for the project, first
preference is given to other activities sponsored by FmHA and then to activities sponsored by other federal
agencies. Property with an acquisition cost of less than $1,000 can be used for other activities or sold.
Property with a cost of more than $1,000 can be used for other purposes as long as compensation is made to
the grantor. If the grantee no longer has use for the property and it still has value, disposition instructions

shall be requested from the grantor agency.

-12-



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30,2011 and 2010

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents - continued

The following reconciles deposits to cash and cash equivalents as presented in the balance sheet:

2011 2010
Disclosures regarding deposits
Cash on hand h 254 $ 249
Deposits 1,013,265 782,292
Certificates of deposit 63,500 63,500
Total b 1,077,019 5 846,041
Statements of net assets and cash flow amounts
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted h 796,367 h 592,037
Investments restricted for debt service
Savings 217,152 190,504
Certificates of deposit — over 3 months 63,500 63,500
~ Total 3 1,077,019 $ 846,041

The following table presents the amount of the District’s deposits which are fully insured or collateralized
with securities held by the District or its agent in the District’s name (category 1), those deposits which are
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions trust department or agent in the
District’s name (category 2), and those deposits which are not collateralized (category 3) at June 30, 2011.
The District’s cash on hand of $254 has been excluded from the amounts shown below.

Category | Category 2 Category 3 Total
Cash deposits $ 250,000 $ 727,650 § 146,206 $1,123,856
Certificates of deposit 50,000 13,500 63,500

$ 300,000 $ 741,150 § 146,206 $1,187,356

3. Accounts Receivable, Trade

The District primarily provides a water system to residents of Stutsman, Foster, Lamoure and Griggs
Counties. The District extends credit to customers, substantially all of whom are local residents.

Accounts written off as uncollectible were $0 and $761 in 2011 and 2010, respectively. In management's

opinion, there are no material accounts which are uncollectible.

4, Accounts Receivable, Other

Accounts receivable, other consists of the following as of June 30, 2011:

STAG Grant

Clean Water State Revolving Funds

USDA Rural Development Loan Funds
North Dakota Department of Transportation
VanBedaf Dairy, 3% interest, 5 years

-14 -

$ 109,500
36,325
113,295
1,304
48,000

$ 308,424



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Years Ended June 30,2011 and 2010

5. Investments in Cooperatives

Investments are stated at cost. Equities received in the form of qualified and non-qualified patronage
distributions are recorded at their stated value when they are received. Non-qualified patronage distributions
are not recorded as income since redemption is uncertain. :

Cooperative equities are not transferable, thereby precluding any market value, but they may be used as

collateral for securing loans. The District does not recognize any impairment of equities until formal
notification is received. Redemption of these equities is at the discretion of the various cooperatives,

6. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity during the year was as follows:

June 30 June 30
2010 Additions Deletions 2011
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land § 50692 3 h) $ 50,692
Construction in progress 4,232,891 1,039,243 4,475,492 796,642
. Total Assets not being -
depreciated 4,283,583 1,039,243 4,475,492 847334
Capital assets being
depreciated:
Office and shop building 294,106 294106
Lines and equipment 8,133,013 4,486,294 12,619,307
Reservoirs and equipment 3,068,229 6,276 3,074,505
Wells and equipment 63,127 63,127
Office equipment 47,194 3,882 51,076
Equipment and tools 114,064 70,978 16,622 168,420
Total capital assets being
depreciated 11,719,733 4,567,430 16,622 16,270,541
Less accumulated
depreciation (5,024,029) 377,889 16,622 (5,385,296)
Net Capital Assets $10,979,287  $5,228,784 $4,475,492  $11,732,579

Depreciation expense included with operating expenses was $278,969 in 2011 and $265,803 in 2010.
Administrative expenses included $9,409 of depreciation in 2011 and $8,980 in 2010. Lease expenses

included $89,511 of depreciation in 2011.

- 15-



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER BISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30,2011 and 2010

7. Bonds, Notes and Loans Payable

The following is a summary of bonds, notes and loans payable transactions of the District for the year ended

June 30, 2011:

June 30 June 30 DuelIn
_ 2010 Issued Retired 2011 One Year
Bank of North Dakota, 1985 $ 781,730 5 $38,859 $ 742,871 $ 39,885
Bank of North Dakota, 1987 61,144 2,614 58,530 2,609
ND Public Finance Agency 410,000 35,000 375,000 35,000
ND Public Finance Agency 160,000 9,000 151,000 9,000
ND Public Finance Agency 995,000 52,000 943,000 57,000
ND Public Finance Agency 4,113,649 360,156 260,000 4,213,805 265,000
ND Rural Water Finance
Corporation 381,288 381,288
Unison Bank 74,754 27,272 47,482 18,845
$ 6,596,277 $741,444  $424,745 $ 6,912,976 $ 427,339
2011 2010
Bank of North Dakota :
3% mortgage note payable dated October 8, 1985, due in annual
installments of $62,244 (including principal and interest) to
October 8, 2025, secured by a real estate mortgage on facility sites h 742,871 $ 781,730
Bank of North Dakota
3% mortgage note payable dated August 28, 1987, due in annual
installments of $4,446 (including principal and interest) to August
20, 2027, secured by a real estate mortgage on facility sites 58,530 61,144
North Dakota Public Finance Agency
Water System Improvement 2.5% Revenue Bonds Series 2000,
dated April 11, 2000, due in annual principal installments of
$21,168 to $40,000 beginning September 1, 2001 with interest due
semi-annually on March 1 and September 1, secured by a lien on
the revenue of the entire system, and a reserve fund of $45,500
required to be funded over five years 375,000 410,000
North Dakota Public Finance Agency
Water System Improvement 2.5% Revenue Bonds Series 2004,
dated April 1, 2004, due in annual installments from $8,000 to
$12,000 beginning September 1, 2005 with interest due semi-
annually on March 1 and September 1, secured by a lien on the
revenue of the entire system, and a reserve fund of $13,500
151,000 160,000

required to be funded over five years

- 16 -



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

7. Bonds, Notes and Loans Payable - continued

2011

2010

North Dakota Public Finance Agency

Water System Improvement 2.5% Revenue Bonds Series 2006,
dated January 23, 2006, due in annual installments from $48,020
to $77,000 beginning September 1, 2006 with interest due semi-
annually on March 1 and September 1, secured by a lien on the
revenue of the entire system, and a reserve fund of $81,850
required to be funded over five years 943,000
North Dakota Public Finance Agency

-5 % Wastewater Revenue Bonds Series 2009, dated June 1, 2009,
due in annual installments from $260,000 to $290,000 beginning
September 1, 2010 with interest due semi-annually on March 1 and
September 1, secured by a lien on the revenues of the entire
system, and a reserve fund of $292,150 required to be funded over

five years 4,213,805
North Dakota Rural Water Finance Corporation
2.5% Revenue Bond Antlclpatlon Note, due July 1, 2012 with

interest 381,288

6.5% note payable to Unison Bank, dated July 8, 2009, due in 9
semi-annual payments of $10,815 (including principal and

interest) starting January 1, 2010, secured by a real estate
47,482

995,000

4,113,649

74,754

mortgage
6,912,976

Less current maturities 427,339

6,596,277
414381

$ 6,485,637

b 6,181,896

Maturities of bonds, notes and loans payable, which are subject to mandatory redemption, are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2012 § 427339 $ 90,172 § 517,511
2013 811,300 92,268 903,568
2014 4 422,787 76,315 499,102
2015 418,598 70,717 489,315
2016 424,996 56,320 481,316
2017 - 2021 2,225,458 240,342 2,465,800
2022 - 2026 2,055,113 93,426 2,148,539
2027 - 2028 127,385 6,827 134,212

$ 6,912,976 $ 726,387 $ 7,639,363
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

8. Defined Contribution Plan

The District sponsors a defined contribution pension plan beginning July 1, 1992, covering substantially all
of its employees who have completed twelve months of employment.

Contributions are determined as 8% of each covered employee's salary up to $20,000 and 1% above
$20,000. In addition, the District will match up to 2% of employees’ contributions. Total pension expenses

were $9,207 in 2011 and $9,212 in 2010.

9. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks including but not limited to losses from worker’s compensation and
general liability/property.
The District’s risk for worker’s compensation is covered by premiums paid to the North Dakota Workforce

Safety. The Bureau was created by the Legislature of the State of North Dakota. The District’s risk for
property coverage, liability coverage and fidelity bonds are covered by premiums paid for commercial

insurance coverage.

For insured programs, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settled claims from
these risks have not exceeded commercial coverage for the past three years.

10. C.ompensated Absences

Employees who have worked more than five years can receive up to 15 days of vacation. Employees who
have worked more than ten years can receive 15 days of vacation plus one day for each year worked after
that up to a maximum of 20 days. Vacation is calculated on the calendar year and computed on December
31 of each year and must be used in the following calendar year. There is no carryover to a subsequent year.
As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the liability for accrued vacation is approximately $9,390 and $7,342,

respectively, which have not been accrued on the books.
11. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. The restricted net asset amounts were as
follows: :

2011 2010

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Net capital assets $11,732,579 $ 10,979,287

Debt as disclosed in note 7 {6,912,976) (6,596,277)
Account payable, construction project (233,968) (83.217)
4,585,635 4,299,793
Restricted for Debt Service
Required reserve by ND Public Finance Agency 280,652 254,004
Unrestricted 1,207,721 674,923

Total Net Assets 3 6,074,008 $ 5,228,720

-18-



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Years Ended June 30, 20611 and 2010

12. Construction Commitments

The District is currently working on the Phase I construction project. The total balance due on the project
as of June 30, 2011 is $548,602.

13. Lease Commitments

The District has entered into a lease agreement with Great River Energy, a Minnesota cooperative
corporation for the transportation of treated wastewater to and from the City of Jamestown and Great River
Energy Spiritwood Station. The lease consists of a fixed component covering the cost of the transportation
facilities amortized over 20 years and the funding of a required reserve account for the first five years and a
variable fee component for the flow of treated wastewater to and discharge from the Station. As of June 30,
2011, operations had not yet commenced and $651,367 and $16,802 had been recorded as lease income for

the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

“OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

2011 2010

Operating supplies b 13,766 by 15,160
Water purchase, Ramsey Rural Water 11,992 . 6,406
Water purchase, City of Jamestown 21,948 10,667
Water purchase, City of Carringion 4,076
Power for pumping . 62,0906 61,541
Small tools expense 4,544 2,880
Chemicals 25,467 25,666
Repairs and maintenance 94.025 51,448
Mobile and site telephone 3,929 3,416
Water testing 1,413 816
Vehicle and travel expense 23,537 16,495
Consumer confidence report 1,172
Depreciation 278,969 265,803

Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses b 545,762 3 461,470

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2011 2010

Salaries 3 239,219 b 198,187
Payroll taxes 21,393 19,054
Insurance, general 5,915 5,798
Insurance, group 57,931 45,962
Board and employee training 4,171 5,351
Office supplies and expense 2,949 2,234
Employee uniforms 934 766
Postage 5,790 5,826
Telephone 3,684 3,687
Professional services 16,714 22,824
Licenses, fees and permits 1,675 1,424
Directors' fees 10,229 8,832
Repairs and maintenance 2,678 5,414
Dues and subscriptions 3,991 1,521
Travel and meetings 877 870
Bad debts 761
Utilities 4,563 4,143
Pension expense 9.207 9,212
Depreciation 9,409 8,980
Amortization 180 455
Miscellaneous 9,912 7,458

Total Administrative Expenses b 411,421 $ 358,759




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - continued
Years-Ended June 30,2011 and 2010 :

Number
2011 2010
1,229 1,211
16 22
(6) 4
1,239 1,229
1
1 1
“ 179 179
179 179
1 1
62
63
543 470
23 73
(53)
513 543

SCHEDULE OF MEMBERS

Users fees
$350 Members (after refunds)
New
Terminated
Balance

Users Fees - No Curb Stops
$350 Members

Balance

Forfeited member and user fees

Memberships
Memberships no hookups

User Fees
$600 Members
New

Memberships Phase ITI
Memberships

New

Transfer to user fees

Total Fees and Users Equity

-2] -

Amount
2011 2010
430,150 S 423,850
5,600 7,700
(2,100) (1,400)
433,650 $ 430,150
350§ 350
350 3 350
84,350 N 82,600
8,950 $ 8,950
8,950 $ 8,950
600 $ 600
37,200
37,800 3 600
28.760 3 24,560
1,250 4,200
(2,650)
27,360 3 28,760
592,460 $ 551410




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - continued

Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

SCHEDULE OF COSTS PER 1,000 GALLONS SOLD

Gallons Sold

Operation and Maintenance Expenses
Administrative Expenses
Interest Expense

Depreciation Expense

Power for pumping
Chemicals

Line repairs

Pump and equipment repair
Insurance

Depreciation

Interest

Total Lease Expenses

2011 2010
01,285,858 94,635,576
Per 1,000 Per 1,000
Gallons Gallons
Total Sold Total Sold
b 266,793 5 2.92 $ 195,667 h 2.07
402,012 4.40 349,779 3.70
73,148 0.80 99,276 1.05
288,378 3.16 274,783 2.90
$ 1,030,331 3 11.28 3 919,505 $ 9.72
LEASE EXPENSES
2011 2010
b 4,380 h
495
5,719
77
524
89,511
40,826
3 141,532 $
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

SCHEDULE OF OPERATIONS - MANAGEMENT BASIS

2011 2010
REVENUE
Metered water sales $ 351,853 $ 318,478
Service charge 574,725 486,140
Qther charges 49,999 55,419
Total Revenue 976,577 860,037
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
Operating supplies 13,766 15,160
Water purchase, Ramsey Rural Water 11,992 ' 6,406
Water purchase, City of Jamestown 21,948 10,667
Water purchase, Carrington 4,076 -
Power for pumping 62,096 61,541
Small tools expense 4,544 2,880
Chemicals 25,467 25,666
Repairs and maintenance 94,025 51,448
Mobile and site telephone 3,929 3,416
Water testing 1,413 816
Vehicle and travel expense 23,537 16,495
Consumer confidence report 1,172
Depreciation 278,969 265,803
Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses 545,762 461,470
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries 239,219 198,187
Payroll taxes 21,393 19,054
Insurance, general 5,915 5,798
Insurance, group 57,931 45,962
Board and employee training 4,171 5,351
Office supplies and expense 2,949 2,234
Employee uniforms 934 766
Postage 3,790 5,826
Telephone 3,684 3,637
Professional services 16,714 22,824
Licenses, fees and permits 1,675 : 1,424
Directors' fees 10,229 - 8,832
Repairs and maintenance 2,678 5,414
Dues and subscriptions 3,991 1,521
Travel and meetings 877 §70
Bad debts 761
Utilities 4,563 4,143
Pension expense 9,207 9,212
Depreciation 9,409 8,980
Amortization expense 180 455
Miscellaneous 9,912 7,458
Total Administrative Expenses 411,421 358,759
Total Expenses 957,183 §20,229
INCOME FROM QOPERATIONS ' $ 19,394 3 39,808
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Ronald R. Fuchs, CPA

MDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  pune R Dunn, cpa
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS o
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

We have audited the financial statements of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 and have issued our report thereon dated October 3, 2011. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. _

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purposes of
expressing our opinion on the financial statement, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the STUTSMAN RURAL

WATER DISTRICT"S internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Qur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material

weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTEHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDBIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS — continued 2

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the District, the
Board of Directors, State Agencies and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution
of this report, which upon acceptance by the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, is a matter of

public record.

S&Kd/—«.u‘-‘ 3W,IQC.

SCHAUER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

October 3, 2011
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A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Ronald R. Fuchs, CPA
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH poane R Dunn, i

REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors :
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, ND

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2011. STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S
management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on STUTSMAN RURAL WATER

DISTRICT’S compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about STUTSMAN
RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on STUTSMAN

RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal

programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S internal control over compliance with requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in-accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER

DISTRICT'S internal control over compliance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB A-133 —continued 2 '

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requiremeént of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. '

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined

above.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the District, the
Board of Directors, State Agencies and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not

be used by anyone other than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution
of this report, which upon acceptance by the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, is a matter of

public record.

SUZ&W ¥ AM,@‘—

SCHAUER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

October 3, 2011
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — continued
Year Ended June 30, 2011

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Federal Pass-through
Program Grant Title CFDA # Grantor’s # Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed Through North Dakota Rural Water
Finance Corporation
Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural
Communities 10.760 $ 381287
Environmental Protection Agency
Passed Through State Department of Health
State and Tribal Assistance Grants (1) 66.202 #XP968017-01 325,678
ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Clean Water :
State Revolving Funds (2) 66.458 380929-01 360,156
Total Environfnental Protection Agency 685,834
Total Federal Awards $ 1,067,121
(1) Major program
(2) State Revolving Loan including commingled funds
State Revolving Loan Balances at year end:
Water system improvement revenue bonds series 2000 $ 375,000
Water system improvement revenue bonds series 2004 151,000
Water system improvement revenue bonds series 2006 943,000
Wastewater revenue bonds of 2009 4,213,805
381,287

Revenue bond anticipation note
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

A. Summary of Audit Results
Type of auditors' report issued - unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting
Material weakness(es) identified yes X no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses?

yes none reported

X
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X _no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs
Material weakness(es) identified yes
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? yes X

X no

none reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major
programs - unqualified ,

Identification of Major Programs
66.202 - State and Tribal Assistance Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and

type B programs $300,000

Auditee qualified as Jow-risk auditee? X yes no

B. Findings Related to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

1. None

C. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards Which Must Include Audit Findings as
Defined in Section 510(a) of Circular A-133.

1. None

30 -



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of

STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT and is presented on the full accrual basis of accounting.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-

133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic

financial statements.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Ronald R. Fuchs, CPA
Duane R. Dunn, CPA
Robert A. Piatz, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER'
DISTRICT as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the related statements of revenues; expenses, and changes in
net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibil ity of
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S management. Our responsibility is to express an opmlon
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and. the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 1, 2010
on our consideration of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the

results.of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT - continued

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of STUTSMAN

RURAL WATER DISTRICT as a whole. The supplementary information as listed in the contents is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governmentis,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of
" STUTSMAN RURAX WATER DISTRICT. The supplementary information and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic

financial statements.

g@/w $ AMIPC

SCHAUER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

October 1, 2010
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

This section of the District’s annual financial report presents an analysis of the District’s financial
performance during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. This information is presented in
conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

o The District’s net assets decreased by $15,747 or .3 % from $5,244,467 t0 $5,228,720.

o Operating revenues increased by $10,358 or 1.2% from $849,679 to $860,037.

° Operating expenses increased by $75,630 or 10.2 % from $744,599 to $820,229.

° For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the District delivered 94.6 million gallons of water.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of the following three parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Information. The financial statements include notes which explain in detail
some of the information included in the financial statements.

Required Financial Statements

The financial statements of the District report information utilizing the full accrual basis of accounting. The
financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

The statement of net assets includes information on the District’s assets and liabilities and provides
information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to District
creditors (liabilities).

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets identifies the District’s revenues and
expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. This statement provides information on the
District’s operations over the past two fiscal years and can be used to determine whether the District has
recovered all of its actual and projected costs through user fees and other charges.

The third statement is the statement of cash flows. This statement provides information on the District’s
cash receipts, cash payments and changes in cash resulting from operations, investments and financing
activities. From the statement of cash flows, the reader can obtain comparative information on the source
and use of cash and the change in the cash balance for each of the last two fiscal years.

Financial Analysis of the District

The statement of net assets (page 7) and the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in nets assets
(page 8) provide an indication of the District’s financial condition and also indicates if the financial
condition of the District improved during the last fiscal year. The District’s net assets reflect the difference
between assets and liabilities. An increase in net assets over time typically indicates an improvement in
financial condition.



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - continued
June 30, 2010 and 2009

NET ASSETS
A summary of the District’s Statements of Net Assets is presented below:
Table I

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2010 and 2009

Dollar Percent
2010 2009 Change Change
ASSETS : .
Current assets $ 691,268 § 580,274 $ 110994 19.1%
Other assets 303,790 129,377 174 413 134.8
Capital assets 10,979,287 8,126,285 2,853,002 35.1
Total Assets $11,974,345 . §$ 8,835,936 3,138,409 35.5%

LIABILITIES '
Current liabilities $ 563,729  $1,182,455 § (618,726) (52.3)%
Non-current liabilities 6,181,896 2,409,014 3,772,882 156.6
" Total Liabilities 6,745,625 3,591,469 3,154,156 87.8
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 4,299,793 © 4,592,670 (292,878) (6.4)
Restricted for debt service 254,004 85,978 168,026 195.4
Unrestricted 674,923 565,819 109,105 19.3
Total Net Assets 5,228,720 5,244,467 (15,747) (0.3)
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $11,974,345  $8,835936  $3,138,409 35.5%

As the above table indicates, total assets increased by $3,138, 409 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.
This is comprlsed of an increase in current assets of $110,994, an increase in other assets of $174,413 and an

increase in capital assets of $2,853,002.

Total labilities reflect an increase of $3,154,156. This includes an increase of $3,772,882 in long-term debt
as the District financed part of the Great River Energy water supply and continued to make the scheduled
debt service payments on existing debt and a decrease of $618,726 in current liabilities reflecting a decrease

in accounts payable incurred primarily for construction projects.

Table I also indicates that total net assets decreased by $15,747. This decrease is the result of operations and
a net increase in member capital.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets in Table II identify the various revenue
and expense items which impact the change in net assets. -

Table I indicates that the District’s total revenues increased by $10,358 or 1.2% to $849,679 from §860,037
in the prior year. Total expenses increased by $85,262 or 10.6% from the prior year.



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - continued

June 30,2010 and 2009
Table II
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009
Dollar Percent
2010 2009 Change Change
Operating revenues § 860,037 $ 849,679 $ 10,358 1.2%
Operations and maintenance
eXpenses 461,470 422203 39,267 9.2
Administrative expenses 358,759 322,396 36,363 113
Non-operating expenses 68,055 58,423 9,632 16.5
Total expenses 888,284 803,022 85,262 10.6
Income (loss) before
contributions (28,247) 46,657 (74,904) (160.5)
Capital contributions 12,500 35,160 (22,660) (64.4)
Change in net assets (15,747 81,817 (97,564) (119.2)
Total net assets — beginning $ 5,244,467 5,162,650 81,817 1.6
Total net assets — ending $5,228,720 $ 5,244,467 $(15,747) (.3)%

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2010, the District’s investment in capital assets totaled $10,979,287, which is an increase of
$2,853,002 or 35.1 % over the capital asset balance of $8,126,285 at June 30, 2009. Capital assets include
all of the District’s major capital assets, including land, buildings, lines, reservoirs, wells, equipment, tools
and vehicles. A comparison of the District’s capital assets over the past two years is presented in Table I1I.

Included among the capital projects completed during the fiscal year were new shop addition ($109,613),
Reservoir 4 improvements ($71,724), meters and meter assembly parts ($18,275) and other miscellaneous
items. :

Table III
CAPITAL ASSETS
June 30, 2010 and 2069
Dollar Percent
2010 2009 Change Change
Land $ 50,692 § 50,692 b ' %
Office and shop building 294,106 184,493 109,613 594
Lines and equipment 8,133,013 8,114,738 18,275 2
Reservoirs and equipment 3,068,229 2,989,847 78,382 2.6
Wells and equipment 63,127 63,127
Office equipment 47,194 45,275 1,919 42
Equipment and tools 114,064 108,592 5472 5.0
Construction in progress 4,232,891 1,318,768 2,914,123 220.9
Total 16,003,316 12,875,532 3,127,784 24.3
Less accumulated depreciation (5,024,029)  (4,749,247) (274,782) 5.8
Total Capital Assets (net of
depreciation) $10,979,287  §$8,126,285 $2,853,002 35.1%
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - continued
June 30,2010 and 2009

Long-Term Debt

As of June 30, 2010, the District had $6,596,277 in outstanding long-term debt compared to $2,539,086 as
of June 30, 2009. The increase of $4,057,191 represents additional debt to finance the Great River Energy
Spiritwood Station project construction less principal payments made during the fiscal year.

2010 2009

Bank of North Dakota b 781,730 $ 819,410
Bank of North Dakota 61,144 63,676
ND Public Finance Agency 410,000 440,000
ND Public Finance Agency 160,000 169,000
ND Public Finance Agency 995,000 1,047,000
ND Public Finance Agency , 4,113,649 .
Unison Bank 74,754

$ 6596277 $ 2,539,086

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt is provided- in note 6 (page 15) of the financial
statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

A modest increase in revenue is expected as well as the addition of approximately 60 new members during
the fiscal year ending June'30, 2011. Expenses are expected to increase an average of 3%. A water rate
increase is effective at the start of the new fiscal year beginning July 1, 2010. The majority of the new
members will be added to the water system through the construction of Phase 1 of the District's Capital
Improvement and Expansion Project which has a completion deadline of June 15, 2011. The start up date
for the Great River Energy Treated Waste Water Delivery and Return Project has been delayed by GRE
until October of 2011. The District will receive income from that project during the current fiscal year
based on the minimum flows required in the contract. :

Additional Financial Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s customers, investors and other interested parties
with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition. Should the reader have
questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request additional financial
information, please contact the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'’S manager at P.O. Box 547,
Jamestown, North Dakota 58402-0547. -



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
June 30
2010 2009
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 592,037 A 488,604
Accounts receivable, trade 67,573 57,983
Inventories 209,882 31,389
Prepaid expenses - 1,776 2,298
Total Current Assets 691,268 580,274
Other Assets: _
Investments restricted for debt service 254,004 85,978
Investments in cooperatives 49,066 43,124
Debt issuance costs (net of accumulated amortization
of $1,225 and $925 as of June 30, 2008 and 2007) 720 275
Total Other Assets 303,790 129,377
Capital Assets:
T.and 50,692 50,692
Office and shop building 294,106 184,493
Lines and equipment 8,133,013 8,114,738
Reservoirs and equipment 3,068,229 2,989,847
Wells and equipment 63,127 63,127
Office equipment 47,194 45,275
Equipment and tools 114,064 108,592
Construction in progress 4,232,891 1,318,768
Less accumulated depreciation (5,024,030) (4,749,247)
Net Capital Assets 10,979,286 8,126,285
Total Assets 11,974,344 $ 83835936

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia staterments
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS.

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Accrued interest payable
Bonds, notes and loans payable

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities:
Bonds, notes and loans payable

Total Liabilities

Net Assets: .
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

June 30

2010 2009

by 08,092 1,015,326
13,050 1,200

38,206 35,857

414,381 130,072
563,729 1,182,455
6,181,896 2,409,014
6,745,625 3,591,469
4,299,793 4,592,670
254,004 85,978
674,923 565,819
5,228,720 5,244 467

$ 11,974,345 8,835,936




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Years Ended June 30,2010 and 2009

OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales '
Service charges
Other charges

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance expenses
Administrative expenses '

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue
Lease income
Gain on disposition of equipment
Miscellaneous revenue (expense)
Interest expense
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (loss) before capital contributions
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS |
Net change in member fees
Total Capital Contributions
Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

2010

2009
318,478  § 301,208
486,140 ' 477,804
55,419 70,667
860,037 849,679
461,470 422,203
358,759 322,396
820,229 744,599
39,808 105,080
14,419 14,011
16,802

4,800

(250)

(99,276) (76,984)

(68,055) (58,423)
(28,247) 46,657
12,500 35,160
12,500 35,160
(15,747) 81,817
5,244,467 5,162,650
5228720 S 5,244,467

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activites
Proceeds from redemption of investments in cooperatives
Other income (expense)
Interest income
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase/construction of capital assets
Sale of capital assets
Increase in restricted cash
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Principal payménts on debt
Interest paid on borrowings
Net change in memberships A
Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

2010 2009

$ 844,673 851,273
(537,034) (458,761)
307,639 392,512

402 392

16,802 (250)

" 8,075 7,972
25279 8,114
(4,039,997) (374,923)
4,800

(168,026) (19,256)
4,204,602 o
(147,410) (126,069)
(96,928) (78,731)

12,500 35,160
(235,259) (559,019)
97,659 (158,393)
488,604 | 646,997

$ 586,263 488,604




Réconcilation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities
Operating Income
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization
.Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Schedule of Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities

Additions to construction of capital assets

2010 2009
39,808 S 105,080
275,238 271,285
(15,364) 1,593
1,507 (1,140)
522 557
(5,922) 15,587
11,850 (450)
307,639 S 392,512
83217 $ 994,529




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER BISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT was incorporated as a non-profit organization for the purpose
of providing a rural water system, including distribution lines, water wells, water storage tanks and water
conditioning facilities for the residents of rural Stutsman County. Effective September 1, 1999, it was
reorganized as a political subdivision.

A. Reporting Entity

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints. a
voting majority of the organization’s governing board and (1) it is able to impose its will on that
organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or
burdens on the primary government. The primary government may be financially accountable if an
organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government. STUTSMAN RURAL WATER
DISTRICT is governed by an elected seven-member board of directors. It is not a component unit of any
other government and does not have any component units unider it. :

B. Basis of Presentation and Accounting

The District’s financial statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The District applies all Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) statements and interpretations, and the Accounting Principles Board (APB) statements issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB

pronouncements.

All activities of the District are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. Proprietary
funds are used to account for operations that are (1) financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises where the intent of the govemning body is that the cost (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or (2) where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the District is determined by its measurement
focus. The transactions of the District are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operations are included on
the balance sheet. Net assets (i.e., total assets net of total liabilities) are segregated into invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted for debt service; and unrestricted components.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance
sheet date, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. - Estimates are used
to determine depreciation expense, the allowance for doubtful accounts and certain claims and judgment
liabilities, among other accounts. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

C. Budgetary Accounting

The District adopts a flexible- annual operating budget. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The current operating budget
details the District’s plans to earn and expend funds for charges incurred for operation, maintenance, certain
interest and general functions, and other charges for the fiscal year. -

All unexpended and unencumbered appropriations in the operating budget lapse at the end of the year.

Management submits a proposed budget to the Board of Directors for approval. During the year,
management is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items.

D. Deposits and Investments

The District maintains deposits at depository banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System. North
Dakota laws require all public deposits to be protected by insurance, surety bond or collateral. The market
value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the deposits not covered by insurance or bonds. ’

Authorized collateral includes bills, notes or bonds issued by the United States government, its agencies or
instrumentalities, all bonds and notes guaranteed by the United States government, federal land bank
bonds, bonds, notes, warrants, certificates of indebtedness, insured certificates of deposit, shares of
investment companies registered under the Investment Companies Act of 1940, and all other forms of
securities issued by the State of North Dakota, whether payable from special revenues or supported by the
full faith and credit of the issuing body, and bonds issued by any other state of the United States or such

other securities approved by the banking board.

Interest rate risk. The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit risk. North Dakota State Statute limits political subdivisions to invest their surpluses in:

1. Bonds, treasury bills and notes, other securities that are a direct obligation of, or an obligation
insured or guaranteed by, the treasury of the United . States, or its agencies, instrumentalities, or

- organizations created by an Act of Congress.

2 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase written by a financial institution in which the
underlying securities for the agreement to repurchase are of the type listed above.

3. Certificates of deposit fully insured by the federal deposit insurance corporation or the state.

4. Obligations of the state.
The District has no investments other than demand and time deposits.

Custodial credit risk — deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of 'a bank failure, the
District’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit
risk. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the District’s deposits are fully insured or collateralized with securities
held by the financial institutions in the District’s name or guaranteed by the FDIC’s Transaction Account

Guarantee Program. (See note 2)
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

E. Cash Flow Information

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents

F. Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost and include chemicals, operating supplies and parts.

G. Capital Asses

Capital assets are carried at cost. The District defines capital assets as assets with an estimated useful life in
excess of two years. Cost includes direct labor, outside services, materials and transportation. Infrastructure
assets are capitalized along with other assets. Depreciation is calculated using straight line methods.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Office and shop building 40 years
Lines and equipment 20 to 50 years
Reservoirs and equipment - 10 to 50 years
Wells and equipment 20 to 40 years
Office equipment 5to 10 years
Equipment and tools o 5to 10 years

Major additions are capitalized and depreciated; maintenance and repairs, which do not improve or extend
the life of the respective assets, are expensed currently. Upon disposal of fixed properties the cost and
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts. The adjusted basis on an item traded is
applied to the property accounts, and the gain or loss of items otherwise disposed of is reflected in income.

Stutsman Rural Water District was the recipient (grantee) of a grant to aid in the construction of the water
system. Under the terms of the grant, the grantee has title to the real property as long as they continue to use
it for the purposes under the grant. If no longer needed for the original grant purpose, the grantee must
receive approval for use in projects under other federal programs that have purposes consistent with those
authorized by the grantor. When no longer needed under the above terms, the grantee shall request

disposition instructions from the grantor agency.

Nonexpendable personal property shall be used for the project. If no longer needed for the project, first
preference is given to other activities sponsored by FmHA and then to activities sponsored by other federal
agencies. Property with an acquisition cost of less than $1,000 can be used for other activities or sold.
Property with a cost of more than $1,000 can be used for other purposes as long as comperisation is made to
the grantor. If thé grantee no longer has use for the property and it still has value, disposition instructions

shall be requested from the grantor agency.
H. Long-Term Obligations and Costs

Long-term obligations are reported at face value, net of applicable premiums and discounts. Premiums and
discounts, issuance costs, and gains or losses on advance refunding and defeasances are deferred and

amortized over the life of the bonds.
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

I. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues that result from the ongoing principal operations
of the District. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services. Non-operating revenues and
expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and investing type of activities
and. result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. When an expense is incurred for purposes
for which there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available, it is the District’s policy to apply
those expenses to restricted net assets to the extent such are available and then to unrestricted net assets.

J. Revenues and Rate Structure

Revenues from water are recognized on the accrual basis and as earned. Services are supplied to customers
under a rate structure designed to produce revenues sufficient to provide operating and maintenance costs,

capital outlay, reserves and debt service coverage.

K. Capital Contributions

Capital contributions are recognized in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
when earned. Contributions include grants in support of system improvements and member fees.

L. Net Assets

Net assets comprise the various net earnings from operating and non-operating revenues, expenses and
contributions of capital. Net assets are classified in the following three components:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction and improvement of
those assets; debt related to unspent proceeds or other restricted cash and investments is excluded from the

determination.

Restricted - consists of net assets for which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such as
lenders, grantors, contributors, laws, regulations and enabling legislation, including self-imposed legal
mandates, less any related liabilities.

Unrestricted - consists of all other net assets not included in the above categories.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Deposits include demand deposits and certificates of deposit in financial institutions. The camrying
(statements of net assets) amounts were $846,041 and $574,582 for June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The bank balances were $1,037,575 and $605,658 for June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. All bank
balances were covered by federal depository insurance and/or pledge of assets.

All Certificates of Deposit held and some of the savings at June 30, 2010 and 2009 are considered reserved
for debt service and not available for current operations. :
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents - continued

The following reconciles deposits to cash and cash equivalents as presented in the balance sheet:

2010 2009
Disclosures regarding deposits : :
Cash on hand $ 249 $ 222
Deposits 782,292 510,860
Certificates of deposit 63,500 63,500
Total 3 846,041 $ 574,582
Statements of net assets and cash flow amounts
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $ 592,037 . 3§ 488,604
Investments restricted for debt service 190,504 22,478
Certificates of deposit — over 3 months -
restricted 63,500 63,500
Total ' A 846,041 $ 574,582

3. Accounts Receivable, Trade

The District primarily provides a water system to residents of Stutsman, Foster, Lamoure and Griggs
Counties. The District extends credit to customers, substantially all of whom are local residents.

Accounts written off as uncollectible were $761 and $366 in 2010 and 2009, respectively. In management's
opinion, there are no material accounts which are uncollectible.

4. Investments in Cooperatives

Investments are stated at cost. EBquities received in the form of qualified and non-qualified patronage
distributions are recorded at their stated value when they are received. Non-qualified patronage distributions

are not recorded as income since redemption is uncertain.
Cooperative equities are not transferable, thereby precluding any market value, but they may be used as

collateral for securing loans. The District does not recognize any impairment of equities until formal
1otification is received. Redemption of these equities is at the discretion of the various cooperatives.

5. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity during the year was as follows:

June 30 June 30
2009 Additions Deletions 2010
Capital assets not being
depreciated: : :
Land $ 50,692 3§ $ - $ 50,692
Construction in progress 1,318,768 3,095,461 181,338 4,232,891
Total Assets not being :
depreciated 1,369,460 3,095,461 181,338 4,283,583
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

5. Capital Assets - continued

June 30 June 30
2009 Additions Deletions 2010

Capital assets being

depreciated:

Office & shop building 184,493 109,613 294,106

Lines and equipment 8,114,738 18,275 8,133,013

Reservoirs and equipment 2,989,847 78,382 3,068,229

Wells and equipment 63,127 63,127

Office equipment 45,275 1,919 - 47,194

Equipment and tools . 108,592 5,472 114,064

Total capital assets being
depreciated : 11,506,072 213,661 11,719,733

Less accumulated _

depreciation (4,749,247) (274,782) (5,024,029)
Net Capital Assets $8,126,285 $3,034,340 $ 181,338 $10,979,287

Depreciation expense included \‘zvith oberating expenses was $265,803 in 2010 and $264,098 in 2009.
Administrative expenses included $8,980 of depreciation in 2010 and $6,887 in 2009.

6. Bonds, Notes and Loans Payable

The following is a summary of bonds, notes and loans payable transactions of the District for the year ended
June 30, 2010:

June 30 June 30 Due In
2009 Issued Retired 2010 One Year
Bank of North Dakota, 1985 $ 819410 3 $37,680 $ 781,730 $ 38,789
Bank of North Dakota, 1987 63,676 ‘ 2,532 61,144 2,612
ND Public Finance Agency © 440,000 30,000 410,000 35,000
ND Public Finance Agency 169,000 9,000 160,000 9,000
ND Public Finance Agency 1,047,000 52,000 995,000 52,000
ND Public Finance Agency 4,113,649 4,113,649 260,000
Unigon Bank 90,953 16,199 74,754 16,980

$ 2,539,086 54,204,602 $147,411 $ 6,596,277 $ 414,381

2010 2009
Bank of North Dakota
3% mortgage note payable dated October 8, 1985, due in annual
installments of $62,244 (including principal and interest) to A
October 8, 2025, secured by a real estate mortgage on facility sites s 781,730 $ 819,410

Bank of North Dakota

3% mortgage note payable dated August 28, 1987, due in annual

installments of $4,446 (including principal and interest) to August

20, 2027, secured by a real estate mortgage on facility sites 61,144 63,676
-15-



STUTSMAN RURAIL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30,2010 and 2009

6. Bonds, Notes and Loans Payable - continued

North Dakota Public Finance Agency

Water System Improvement 2.5% Revenue Bonds Series 2000,
dated April 11, 2000, due in annual principal installments of
$21,168 to $40,000 beginning September 1, 2001 with interest due
semi-annually on March 1 and September 1, secured by a lien on
the revenue of the entire system, and a reserve fund of $45,500,
required to be funded over five years

North Dakota Public Finance Agency

Water System Improvement 2.5% Revenue Bonds Series 2004,
dated April 1, 2004, due in annual installments from $8,000 to
$12,000 beginning September 1, 2005 with interest due semi-
annually on March 1 and September 1, secured by a-lien on the
revenue of the entire system, and a reserve fund of $13,500
required to be funded over five years

North Dakota Public Finance Agency

Water System Improvement 2.5% Revenue Bonds Series 2006,
dated January 23, 2006, due in annual installments from $48,020
to $77,000 beginning September 1, 2006 with interest due semi-
annually on March 1 and September 1, secured by a lien on the
revenue of the entire system, and a reserve fund of $81,850
required to be funded over five years

North Dakota Public Finance Agency

.5 % Wastewater Revenue Bonds Series 2009, dated June 1, 2009,
due in annual installments from $260,000 to $290,000 beginning
September 1, 2010 with interest due semi-annually on March 1 and
September 1, secured by a lien on the revenues of the entire
system, and a reserve fund of $292,150 required to be funded over

five years

6.5% note payable to Unison Bank, dated July §, 2009, due in 9
semi-annual payments of $10,815 (including principal and
interest) starting January 1, 2010, secured by a real estate

mortgage

Less current maturities

2010 2009
410,000 440,000
160,000 169,000
995,000 1,047,000

4,113,649

74,754

6,596,277 2.539.086

414,381 130,072
$ 6,181,896 $ 2,409,014
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

6. Bonds, Notes and Loans Payable - continued

Maturities of bonds, notes and loans payable, which are subject to mandatory redemption, are as follows:

Principal . Interest - Total
2011 $ 414381 $ 71,889 $ 486,270
2012 426,761 66,797 493,558
2013 429,253 - 61,529 490,782
2014 434,567 56,105 490,672
2015 418,597 . 50,855 469,452
2016 —2020 2,195,814 186,286 2,382,100
2021 —2025 2,160,399 59,938 2,220,337
2026 — 2028 116,505 2,577 119,082

$ 6,596,277 § 555976 $ 7,152,253

7. Defined Contribution Plan

The District sponsors a defined contribution pension plan beginning July 1, 1992, covering substantially all
of its employees who have completed eighteen months of employment.

Contributions are determined as 8% of each covered employee's salary up to $20,000 and 1% above
$20,000. In addition, the District will match up to 2% of employges’ contributions. Total pension expenses
were $9,212 in 2010 and $7,946 in 2009.

8. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks including but not limited to losses from worker’s compensation and
general liability/property.

The District’s risk for worker’s compensation is covered by premiums paid to the North Dakota Workforce
Safety. The Bureau was created by the Legislature of the State of North Dakota. The District’s risk for
property coverage, liability coverage and fidelity bonds are covered by premiums paid for commercial

insurance coverage.

For insured programs, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settled claims from
these risks have not exceeded commercial coverage for the past three years.

9, Compensated Absences

Employees who have worked more than five years can receive up to 15 days of vacation. Employees who
have worked more than ten years can receive 15 days of vacation plus one day for each year worked after
that up to a maximum of 20 days. Vacation is calculated on the calendar year and computed on December
31 of each year and must be used in the following calendar year. There is no carryover to a subsequent year.
As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the liability for accrued vacation is approximately $7,342 and $6,836,

respectively, which have not been accrued on the books.
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

10. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. The restricted net asset amounts were as
follows: '

: 2010 2009

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Net capital assets $ 10,979,287 $ 8,126,285

Debt as disclosed in note 6 (6,596,277) (2,539,086)

Account payable, construction project - (83,217) (994,529)

4,299,793 4,592,670

Restricted for Debt Service . Kﬁﬁi@g‘k

Required reserve by ND Public Finance Agency 254,004 -~ 35,978

N—"

Unrestricted 674,923 565,819

Total Net Assets $ 5,228,720 $ 5,244,467

11. Construction Commitments

The District is currently working on the Great River Energy Spiritwood Station Reservoir construction
project. The District has signed construction agreements totaling $3,224,928 of which $3,124,928 has been
incurred up to June 30, 2010. The total balance due on the agreements is $100,000.

12. Lease Commitments

The District has entered into a lease agreement with Great River Energy, a Minnesota cooperative
corporation for the transportation of treated wastewater to and from the City of Jamestown and Great River
Energy Spiritwood Station. The lease consists of a fixed component covering the cost of the transportation
facilities amortized over 20 years and the funding of a required reserve account for the first five years and a
variable fee component for the flow of treated wastewater to and discharge from the Station. As of June 30,
2010, operations had not yet commenced and $16,802 had been recorded as lease income.
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

_ 2010 2009
Operating supplies 5 15,160 18,338
Water purchase, Ramsey Rural Water 6,406 2,616 -
Water purchase, City of Jamestown 10,667
Power for pumping 61,541 53,729
Small tools expense 2,880 2,490
Chemicals 25,666 22,018
Repairs and maintenance 51,448 35,582
Mobile and site telephone 3,416 3,061
Water testing 816 1,604
Vehicle and travel expense 16,495 - 17,940
Consumer confidence report 1,172 728
Depreciation 265,803 264,098
" Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses $ 461,470 422,203
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2010 2009
Salaries 3 198,187 170,512
Payroll taxes 19,054 14,779
Insurance, general 5,798 5,462
Insurance, group 45,962 52,771
Board and employee training 5,351 2,777
Office supplies and expense 2,234 2,231
Employee uniforms 766 921
Postage ' 5,826 5,725
Telephone 3,687 3,202
Professional services 22,824 19,594
Licenses, fees and permits 1,424 1,229
Directors' fees 8,832 11,582
Repairs and maintenance 5414 3,352
Dues and subscriptions 1,521 1,619
Travel and meetings 870 1,074
Bad debis ' 761 366
Utilities 4,143 3,555
Pension expense 9,212 7,946
Depreciation 8,980 6,887
Amortization 455 300
Miscellaneous 7,458 6,422
Total Administrative Expenses h) 358,759 322,396

-19-




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

SCHEDULE OF MEMBERS
Number . _ Amount
2010 2009 - ‘ Users fees 2010 2009

1,211 1,185  $350 Members (after refunds) § 423,850 $ 414,750

22 28  New 7,700 9,800

2 New from nonqualified - 700

1  New from Phase I1I 350
4 (5) Terminated (1,400) (1,750)

1,229 1,211 Balance $ 430,150 $ 423,850

Users Fees - No Curb Stops

1 I $350 Members : $ . 350 $ 350
1 1 Balance ’ 350 350
Forfeited member and user fees $ 82,600 $ 81,200
. Memberships _ :
179 184  Memberships no hookups 3 8,950 i) 9,200
(2) Transfer to user fees (100)
(3) Transfer to Phase III (150)
179 179 , ' 3 8950 3 8,950
User Fees
1 $600 Members $ 600 $
470 Memberships Phase ITI $ 24,560 $
3 Transfer from nonqualified - 150
73 468  New 4,200 24,460
(1) Transfer to user fees (50)
543 470 b 28,760 $ 24,560
Total Fees and Users Equity $ 551,410 $ 538,910 -
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - continued
Years Ended June 30,2010 and 2009

SCHEDULE OF COSTS PER 1,000 GALLONS SOLD

2010 2009
Gallons Sold 94,635,576 88,757,182
Per 1,000 Per 1,000
Gallons Gallons
Total : Sold Total Sold

Operation and Maintenance Expenses 3 195,667 b 2.07 5 158,105 3 1.78
Administrative Expenses 349,779 3.70 315,509 3.55
Interest Expense 99,276 1.05 76,984 0.87
Depreciation Expense 274,783 2.90 270,985 3.05

5 919,505 b 9.72 3 821,583 9.25
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - continued
Years Ended June 30,2010 and 2009

SCHEDULE OF OPERATIONS - MANAGEMENT BASIS

2010 2009
REVENUE
Metered water sales . 5 318,478 b 301,208
Service charge 486,140 477,804
Other charges ’ . 55,419 70,667
Total Revenue 860,037 849,679
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
Operating supplies . 15,160 18,338
Water purchase, Ramsey Rural ‘Water 6,400 2,616
Water purchase, City of Jamestown 10,667 :
Power for pumping 61,541 53,729
Small tools expense : 2,880 2,490
Chemicals : ‘ 25,666 : 22,018
Repairs and maintenance ' 51,448 35,582
Mobile and site telephone : . 3,416 3,061
Water testing ' : ' gl6 1,604
Vehicle and travel expense 16,495 17,940
Consumer confidence report . . 1,172 728
Depreciation 265,803 264,098
Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses 461,470 422,203
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES - .
Salaries 198,187 170,512
Payroll taxes 19,054 14,779
Insurance, general 5,798 5,462
Insurance, group 45,962 52,771
Board and employee training 5,351 2,777
Office supplies and expense _ 2,234 2,231
Employee uniforms . 766 921
Postage , ' 5,826 5,725
Telephone 3,687 3,292
Professional services : . 22,824 19,594
Licenses, fees and permits 1,424 1,229
Directors' fees 8,832 11,582
Repairs and maintenance 5,414 3,352
Dues and subscriptions 1,521 1,619
Travel and meetings 870 1,074
Bad debts 761 , 366
Utilities ' 4,143 3,555
Pension expense 9,212 7,946
Depreciation 8,980 6,387
Amortization expense 455 300
Miscellaneous ' 7,458 ' 6,422
Total Administrative Expenses 358,759 : 322,396
Total Expenses 820,229 744,600
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS $ 39,808 $ 105,080
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN TS Ronald R. Fuchs, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  peane % Dunn CPA

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

We have audited the financial statements of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 and have issued our report thereon dated October 1, 2010. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. '

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purposes of
expressing our opinion on the financial statement, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the STUTSMAN RURAL ,

WATER DISTRICT’S internal control over financial reporting. :

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’'s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limjted purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Qther Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S
financial statements are free of materjal misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions -of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

- 24 -
First Cornmunity Credit Union - Suite 203 « 111 9th St, SW - P.O. Box 1808 « (701) 252-5422 + Jamestown, ND 58402-1808
American Institute of CPA's « North Dakola Society of CPA's » Privata Company Practice Section




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS — continued 2

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the District, the
Board of Directors, State Agencies and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution
of this report, which upon acceptance by the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, is a matter of

public record. _ "

SCHAUER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

October 1, 2010
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4 CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Ronald R, Fuchs, CPA
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH Robaces. unn, CPA

REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, ND

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2010. STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors® results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal programs is the responsibility of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S compliance based

on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financlal audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about STUTSMAN
RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on STUTSMAN
RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended

June 30, 2010.

~ Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered STUTSMAN
RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over comphance
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER

DISTRICT'S internal control over compliance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB A-133 —coutinued 2

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned

functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a.
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,

or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable

possibility that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will

not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined

above.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management,. others within the District, the
Board of Directors, State Agencies and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not

be used by anyone other than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution
of this report, which upon acceptance by the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, is a matter of

public record.

S@/ZﬁAW H AM?“

SCHAUER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

October 1, 2010
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - continued
Year Ended June 30, 2010

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Federal Pass-through
Program Grant Title ' CFDA # Grantor’s # Expenditures
Environmental Protection Agency
Passed Through State Department of Health
ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Clean Water .
State Revolving Funds (1) (2) 66.458 - 380925-01 $ 2,932,538
(1) Major program
(2) State Revolving Loan including commingled funds -
State Revolving Loan Balances at year end:
Water system improvement revenue bonds series 2000 § 410,000
Water system improvement revenue bonds series 2004 160,000
Water system improvement revenue bonds series 2006 995,000
4,113,649

Wastewater revenue bonds of 2009




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

A. Summary of Audit Results
Type of auditors report issued - unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting

Material weakness(es) identified , yes X no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal contro] over major programs
Material weakness(es) identified : yes X no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? ves X none reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major
programs - unqualified

Identification of Major Programs

66.458 - ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and

type B programs $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X  no
B. Findings Related to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

1. None

C. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards Which Must Include Audit Findings as
Defined in Section 510(a) of Circular A-133.

1. None
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30,2010

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT and is presented on the full accrual basis of accounting.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic

financial statements.
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Stutsman County, North Dakota

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(with supplementary information)
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER
DISTRICT as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in
net assets and cash flows for the years then énded. These financial statements are the responsibility of
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 6, 2009
on our consideration of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
§ performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT - continued

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the financial statements of STUTSMAN

RURAL WATER DISTRICT as a whole, The supplementary information as listed in the contents jg
presented for purposes of additional analysis and js hot a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federa] awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governmenys,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basjc financial statements of
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT The supplementary information and the schedule of
expenditures of federa] awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the

basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in al] material respects in relation to the basic

S&Ziqw z Amjzéé_ R

SCHAUER & ASSOCIATES, PC.
Certified Public Accountants

October 6, 2009



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2009 and 2308

This section of the District’s annual financial report presents an analysis of the District’s financial
performance during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 ‘and 2008. This information is presented in
comjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

* The District’s net assets increased by $81,817 or 1.6 % from $5,162,650 to 35,244,467,

¢ Operating revenues increased by $41,151 or 5% from $808,528 to $849,679.

e Operating expenses increased by $71,649 or 10.6 % from $672,952 to $744,599.

°  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the District delivered 88.7 million gallons of water.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of the following three parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Information. The financial statements include notes which explain in detail
some of the information included in the financial statements.

Required Financial Statements

The financial statements of the District report information utilizing the full accrual basis of accounting. The
financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The statement of net assets includes information on the District’s assets and liabilities and provides
information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obli gations to District

creditors (liabilities).

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets identifies the District’s revenues and
expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008. This statement provides information on the
District’s operations over the past two fiscal years and can be used to determine whether the District has
recovered all of its actual and projected costs through user fees and other charges.

The third statement is the statement of cash flows. This statement provides information on the District’s
cash receipts, cash payments and changes in cash resulting from operations, investments and financing
activities. From the statement of cash flows, the reader can obtain comparative information on the source
‘and use of cash and the change in the cash balance for each of the last two fiscal years.

Financial Analysis of the District

The statement of net assets (page 7) and the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in nets assets
(page 8) provide an indication of the District’s financial condition and also indicates that the financial
condition of the District improved during the last fiscal year. The District’s net assets reflect the difference
between assets and liabilities. An increase in net assets over time typically indicates an improvement in
financial condition.

R S



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - continned
June 30, 2009 and 2008

NET ASSETS
A summary of the District’s Statements of Net Assets is presented below:

Table I
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2009 and 2008

Dollar Percent
2009 2008 Change Change
ASSETS
Current assets § 580,274 § 739,677 $ (159,403) (21.6) %
Other assets 129,377 104,775 24,602 235
Capital assets 8,126,285 7,027,817 1,098,468 15.6
Total Assets 5 8,835,936 $ 7,872,269 ¥ 963,667 12.2%
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 51,182,435 ¥ 170,487 $1,011,968 593.6
Non-current liabilities 2,409,014 2,539,132 (130,118) (5.1
Total Liabilities 3,591,469 2,709,619 881,850 32.5
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 4,592,670 4,362,663 230,007 5.3
Restricted for debt service 85,978 66,722 19,256 28.9
Unrestricted 565,819 733,265 (167.,446) (22.8)
Total Net Assets 5,244 467 5,162,650 81,817 1.6
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 8,835,936 $ 7,872,269 $ 963,667 12.2%

As the above table indicates, total assets increased by $963,667 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.
This is comprised of a decrease in current assets of $159,403, an increase in other assets of $24,602 and an
increase in capital assets of $1,098,468.

Total liabilities reflect an increase of 3881,850. This includes a decrease of $130,118 in long-term debt as
the District continued to make the scheduled debt service payments and an increase of $1,011,968 in current
labilities reflecting an increase in accounts payable incurred primarily for construction projects,

Table I also indicates that total net assets increased by $81,817. This increase is the result of operations and
a net increase in member capital.

The Statements of Revenues; Expenses and Changes in Net Assets in Table I1 identify the various revenue
and expense items which impact the change in net assets.

Table II indicates that the District’s total revenues increased by $41,151 or 5.1% to $849,679 from $808,528
in the prior year. Total expenses increased by $78,021 or 10.8% during the fiscal year.
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - continued
June 30, 2009 and 2008

Table I1
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

Dollar Percent
2009 2008 Change Change
Operating revenues $ 849,679 § 808,528 $ 41,151 5.1%
Operations and maintenance -
expenses 422,203 376,332 45,871 12.2
Administrative expenses 322,396 296,620 25,776 8.7
Non-operating expenses 58,423 52,050 6,373 12.2
Total expenses 803,022 725,002 78,020 10.8
Income before contributions 46,657 83,526 . (36,869) (44.1)
Capital contributions 35,160 5,500 29,660 539.3
Change in net assets 81,817 89,026 (7,209) (8.1)
Total net assets — beginning 5,162,650 5,073,624 89,026 1.8
Total net assets — ending £ 5,244,467 $5,162,650 $ 81,817 1.6%

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2009, the District’s investment in capital assets totaled $8,126,285, which is an increase of
$1,098,468 or 15.6 % over the capital asset balance of $7,027,817 at June 30, 2008. Capital assets include
all of the District’s major capital assets, including fand, buildings, lines, reservoirs, wells, equipment, tools
and vehicles. A comparison of the District’s capital assets over the past two years is presented in Table 1.

Included among the capital projects completed during the fiscal year were 37 valve repairs ($4,840),
Reservoir 1 catwalk (37,247), GIS mapping update (56,872), 2008 pickup ($18,530), meters and meter
assembly parts ($14,118) and other miscellaneous items.

Table 111
CAPITAL ASSETS
June 30, 2009 and 2008
’ Dollar Percent
2009 2008 Change Change
Land $ 50,692 $ 50,692 i %
Office and shop building 184,493 184,493
Lines and equipment 8,114,738 8,088,908 25,830 3
Reservoirs and equipment 2,980,847 2,982,600 7,247 2
Wells and equipment 63,127 63,127
Office equipment 45,275 47,171 . (1,896) (.4)
Equipment and tools 108,592 113,223 (4,631) (4)
Construction in progress 1,318,768 1,318,768 100.
Total 12,875,532 11,530,214 1,345,318 11.7
Less accumulated depreciation (4,749,247) (4,502,397) (246,850) 5.5
Total Capital Assets (net of :
depreciation) $8,126,285  $7,027,817 $1,098,468 . 15.6%
-5 .



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - continued
June 30, 2009 apd 2008

Long-Term Debt

As of June 30, 2009, the District had $2,539,086 in outstanding long-term debt compared to §2,665,155 as
of June 30, 2008. The decrease of $126,069 represents principal payments made during the fiscal year.

2009 2008
Bank of North Dakota b 819,410 3 855,994
Bank of North Dakota 63,676 66,141
ND Municipal Bond Bank ' 440,000 470,000
ND Municipal Bond Bank 169,000 178,000
ND Municipal Bond Bank 1,047,000 1,095,020

§ 2,539,086 § 2,665,155

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt is provided in note 6 (page 15) of the financial
statements. '

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

A slight increase in revenue and the addition of approximately 20 new members is expected during the fiscal
* year ending June 30, 2010. Expenses are expected to increase an average of 3%. Water rates have not been
adjusted since 1999. A modest increase in water rates is anticipated in the next fiscal year. The Great River
Energy Treated Waste Water Delivery and Return Project is expected to be completed and operational by
June 1, 2010. Income may not be realized from the project until fiscal 2010/2011.

Additional Financial Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s customers, investors and other interested parties
with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition. Should the reader have
questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request additional financial
information, please contact the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S manager at P.O. Box 547,

Jamestown, Narth Dakota 58402-0547.



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, trade
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Other Assets:
Investments restricted for debt service
Investments in cooperatives
Debt issuance costs (net of accumulated amortization
of $1,225 and $925 as of June 30, 2008 and 2007)

Total Other Assets

Capital Assets:
Land
Office and shop building
Lines and equipment
Reservoirs and equipment
Wells and equipment
Office equipment
Equipment and tools
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Net Capital Assets

Total Assets

June 30
2009 2008

488,604  § 646,997
57,983 59,576
31,389 30,249
2,298 2.855
580,274 739,677
85,978 66,722
43,124 37,478
275 575
129,377 104,775
50,692 50,692
184,493 184,493
8,114,738 8,088,908
2,989,847 2,982,600
63,127 63,127
45275 47171
108,592 113,223

1,318,768

(4,749,247) (4,502,397)

8,126,285 7.027,817
8.835936 & 7,872,269

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



' LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Accrued interest payable
Bonds, notes and loans payable

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities:
Bonds, notes and loans payable

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

June 30

2009 2008
1,015,326 5,210
1,200 1,650
35,857 37,604
130,072 126,023
1,182,455 170,487
2,409,014 2,539,132
3,591,469 2,709,619
4,592,670 4,362,663
85,978 66,722
565,819 733,265
5,244,467 5,162,650
8,835,936 7,872,269




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales 3 301,208 3 293,845
Service charges 477,804 469,644
Other charges 70,667 45,039
Total Operating Revenues ' 849,679 808,528
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance expenses 422,203 376,332
Administrative expenses 322,396 296,620
Total Operating Expenses ~ - 744,599 672,952
Operating Income 105,080 135,576
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 14,011 16,513
Gain on disposition of equipment 4,800 12,000
Miscellaneous revenue (expense) (250) 3,531
Interest expense (76,984) (84,094)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (58,423) (52,050)
Income before capital contributions 46,657 83.526
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS _
Net change in member fees _ ‘ 35,160 5,500
Total Capital Contributions 35,160 5,500
- Change in Net Assets 81,817 89,026
Total Net Assets - Beginning 5,162,650 5,073,624
Total Net Assets - Ending A 5,244,467 by 5,162,650

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from customers 5 851,273 806,93:
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (458,761) (516,26
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 392,512 290,67
Cash Flows From Investing Activites
Proceeds from redemption of investments in cooperatives 392 7,91¢
Other income (expense) . (250) 3,531
Interest income 7,972 14,132
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities . 8,114 25,582
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase/construction of capital assets (374,923) (82,41¢
Sale of capital assets 4,800 12,00C
Increase in restricted cash , (19,256) (16,722
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt : 06,713
Principal payments on debt (126,069) (189,905
Interest paid on borrowings (78,731) (82,586
Net change in memberships 35,160 5,500
Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Fin:incing Activities (559,019) (254,416
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (158,393) 61,836
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 646,997 585,161
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 488,604 646,997

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



2009 2008

Reconcilation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided

by Operating Activities
Operating Income hY 105,080 $ 135,576
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization : 271,285 269,031
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Receivables 1,593 (1,594)
Inventories (1,140) (12,126)
Prepaid expenses 557 (564)
Accounts payable 15,587 (100,028)
Customer deposits ) (450) 375
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 392,512 5 290,670

Schedule of Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities

Additions to construction of capital assets 5 994,529 N




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT was incorporated as a non-profit organization for the purpose
of providing a rural water system, including distribution lines, water wells, water storage tanks and water
conditioning facilities for the residents of rural Stutsman County. Effective September 1, 1999, it was

reorganized as a political subdivision.

A. Reporting Entity

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a
voting majority of the organization’s governing board and (1) it is able to impose its will on that
organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or
burdens on the primary government. The primary government may be financially accountable if an
organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government. STUTSMAN RURAL WATER
DISTRICT is governed by an elected seven-member board of directors. It is not a component unit of any

other government and does not have any component units under it.

B. Basis of Presentation and Accounting

The District’s financial statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The District applies all Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) statements and interpretations, and the Accounting Principles Board (APB) statements issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB

pronouncements.

All activities of the District are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. Proprietary
funds are used to account for operations that are (1) financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or (2) where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the District is determined by its measurement
focus. The transactions of the District are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with tlie operations are included on
the balance sheet. Net assets (i.e., total assets net of total liabilities) are segregated into invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted for debt service; and unrestricted componeris.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance
sheet date, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates are used
to determine depreciation expense, the allowance for doubtful accounts and certain claims and judgment
liabilities, among other accounts. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

-10 -



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

C. Budgetary Accounting

The District adopts a flexible annual operating budget. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The current operating budget
details the District’s plans to earn and expend funds for charges incurred for operation, maintenance, certain
interest and general functions, and other charges for the fiscal year.

All unexpended and unencumbered appropriations in the operating budget lapse at the end of the year.

Management submits a proposed budget to the Board of Directors for approval. During the year,
management is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items. :

D. Deposits and Investments

The District maintains deposits at depository banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System. North
Dakota laws require all public deposits to be protected by insurance, surety bond or collateral. The market
value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the deposits not covered by insurance or bonds.

Authorized collateral includes bills, notes or bonds issued by the United States government, its agencies or
instrumentalities, all bonds and notes guaranteed by the United States government, federal land bank
bonds, bonds, notes, warrants, certificates of indebtedness, insured certificates of deposit, shares of
investment companies registered under the Investment Companies Act of 1940, and all other forms of
securities issued by the State of North Dakota, whether payable from special revenues or supported by the
full faith and credit of the issuing body, and bonds issued by any other state of the United States or such

other securities approved by the banking board.

Interest rate risk. The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit risk. North Dakota State Statute limits political subdivisions to invest their surpluses in:

I. Bonds, treasury bills and notes, other securities that are a direct obligation of, or an obligation
insured or guaranteed by, the treasury of the United States, or its agencies, instrumentalities, or
organizations created by an Act of Congress.

2. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase written by a financial institution in which the
underlying securities for the agreement to repurchase are of the type listed above.

3. Certificates of deposit fully insured by the federal deposit insurance corporation or the state.

4, Obligations of the state.
The District has no investments other than demand and time deposits.

Custodial credit risk — deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
District’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit
risk. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, the District’s deposits are fully insured or collateralized with securities
held by the financial institutions in the District’s name or guaranteed by the FDIC’s Transaction Account

Guarantee Program. (See note 2)

-11 -



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

E. Cash Flow Information

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents

F. Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost and include chemicals, operating supplies and parts.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets are carried at cost. The District defines capital assets as assets with an estimated useful life in
excess of two years. Cost includes direct labor, outside services, materials and transportation. Infrastructure
assets are capitalized along with other assets. Depreciation is calculated using straight line methods,

~

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Office and shop building . 40 years
Lines and equipment 20 to 50 years
Reservoirs and equipment 10 to 50 years
Wells and equipment 20 to 40 years
Office equipment 5to 10 years
Equipment and tools 5to 10 years

Major additions are capitalized and depreciated; maintenance and repairs, which do not improve or extend
the life of the respective assets, are expensed currently. Upon disposal of fixed properties the cost and
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts. The adjusted basis on an item traded is
applied to the property accounts, and the gain or loss of items otherwise disposed of is reflected in income.

Stutsman Rural Water District was the recipient (grantee) of a grant to aid in the construction of the water
system. Under the terms of the grant, the grantee has title to the real property as long as they continue to use
it for the purposes under the grant. If no longer needed for the original grant purpose, the grantee must
receive approval for use in projects under other federal programs that have purposes consistent with those
‘authorized by the grantor. When no longer needed under the above terms, the grantee shall request

disposition instructions from the grantor agency.

Nonexpendable personal property shall be used for the project. If no longer needed for the project, first
preference is given to other activities sponsored by FmHA and then to activities sponsored by other federal
agencies. Property with an acquisition cost of less than $1,000 can be used for other activities or sold.
Property with a cost of more than $1,000 can be used for other purposes as long as compensation is made to
the grantor. If the grantee no longer has use for the property and it still has value, disposition instructions

shall be requested from the grantor agency.

H. Long-Term Obligations and Costs

Long-term obligations are reported at face value, net of applicable premiums and discounts. Premiums and
discounts, jssuance costs, and gains or losses on advance refunding and defeasances are deferred and

amortized over the life of the bonds.

-12 -



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 3¢, 2009 and 2008

I. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues that result from the ongoing principal operations
of the District. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services. Non-operating revenues and
expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and investing type of activities
and result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. When an expense is incurred for purposes
for which there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available, it is the District’s policy to apply
those expenses to restricted net assets to the extent such are available and then to unrestricted net assets.

J. Revenues and Rate Structure

Revenues from water are recognized on the accrual basis and as earned. Services are supplied to customers
under a rate structure designed to produce revenues sufficient to provide operating and maintenance costs,

capital outlay, reserves and debt service coverage.

~

K. Capital Contributions

Capital contributions are recognized in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
when earned. Contributions include grants in support of system improvements and member fees.

L. Net Assets

Net assets comprise the various net earnings from operating and non-operating revenues, expenses and
contributions of capital. Net assets are classified in the following three components:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction and improvement of
those assets; debt related to unspent proceeds or other restricted cash and investments is excluded from the

determination.

Restricted - consists of net assets for which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such as
lenders, grantors, contributors, laws, regulations and enabling legislation, including self-imposed legal
mandates, less any related liabilities.

Unrestricted - consists of all other net assets not included in the above categories.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Deposits include demand deposits and certificates of deposit in financial institutions. The carrying
(statements of net assets) amounts were $574,582 and $713,719 for June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The bank balances were $605,658 and $731,393 for June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. All bank
balances were covered by federal depository insurance and/or pledge of assets.

All 'Certiﬁcates of Deposit held at June 30, 2009 and 2008 are considered reserved for debt service and not
available for current operations.

-13-



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2009 ard 2008

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents - continued

The following reconciles deposits to cash and cash equivalents as presented in the balance sheet:

: 2009 2008
Disclosures regarding deposits
Cash on hand $ 222 $ 155
Deposits 510,860 650,064
Certificates of deposit - 63,500 63,500
Total _ , $ 574,582 3 713,719
Staternents of net assets and cash flow amounts
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted b 488,604 h) 646,997
Investments restricted for debt service 22,478 3,222
Certificates of deposit — over 3 months - N
restricted 63,500 63,500
Total 3 574,582 3 713,719

3. Accounts Receivable, Trade -

The District primarily provides a water system to residents of Stutsman, Foster, Lamoure and Griggs
Counties. The District extends credit to customers, substantially all of whom are local residents.

Accounts written off as uncollectible were $366 and $118 in 2009 and 2008, respectively. In management's
opinion, there are no material accounts which are uncollectible.

4. Investments in Cooperatives

Investments are stated at cost. Equities received in the form of qualified and non-qualified patronage
distributions are recorded at their stated value when they are received. Non-qualified patronage distributions
are not recorded as income since redemption is uncertain.

Cooperative equities are not transferable, thereby precluding any market value, but they may be used as

collateral for securing loans. The District does not recognize any impairment of equities until formal
notification is received. Redemption of these equities is at the discretion of the various cooperatives.

5. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity during the year was as follows:

June 30 June 30
2008 Additions Deletions 2009
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land $ 50,692 § $ § 50,692
Construction in progress 1,318,768 1,318,768
Total Assets not being ,
depreciated 50,692 1,318,768 1,369,460
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

5. Capital Assets - continued

June 30 June 30
2008 Additions Deletions 2009

Capital assets being

depreciated:

Building 184,493 184,493

Lines and equipment 8,088,908 25,830 8,114,738

Reservoirs and equipment 2,882,600 7,247 2,989,847

Wells and equipment 63,127 63,127

Office equipment 47,171 1,394 3,290 45,275

Equipment and tools 113,223 18,530 23,161 108,592

Total capital assets being :
depreciated 11,479,522 53,001 ~26,451 11,506,072

Less accumulated

depreciation 4,502,397 270,985 24,135 4,749 247
Net Capital Assets 3 7,027,817 51,100,784 $ 2,316 §$ 8,126,285

Depreciation expense included with operating expenses was $ 264,098 in 2009 and $261,670 in 2008.

Administrative expenses included $6,887 of depreciation in 2009 and $7,061 in 2008.

6. Bonds, Notes and Loans Payable

The following is a summary of bonds, notes and loans payable transactions of the District for the year ended

June 30, 2009:
June 30 June 30 Due In
2008 Issued Retired 2009 One Year
Bank of North Dakota, 1985 $ 855,994 N 336,584 $ 819,410 b 36,521
Bank of North Dakota, 1987 66,141 2,465 63,676 2,551
ND Public Finance Agency 470,000 30,000 440,000 30,000
ND Public Finance Agency 178,000 9,000 169,000 9,000
ND Public Finance Agency 1,095,020 48,020 1,047,000 52,000
$ 2,665,155 $ $126,069 $ 2,539,086 $ 130,072
2009 2008
Bank of North Dakota
3% mortgage note payable dated October 8, 1985, due in annual
installments of $62,244 (including principal and interest) to
October 8, 2025, secured by a real estate mortgage on facility sites $ 819,410 § 855,994
Bank of North Dakota
3% mortgage note payable dated August 28, 1987, due in annual
installments of $4,446 (including principal and interest) to August
20, 2027, secured by a real estate mortgage on facility sites 63,676 66,141

=15 -




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

6. Bonds, Notes and Loans Payable - continued

2009

2008

North Dakota Public Finance Agency _

Water System Improvement 2.5% Revenue Bonds Series 2000,
dated April 11, 2000, due in annual principal installments of
$21,168 to $40,000 beginning September 1, 2001 with interest due
semi-annually on March | and September 1, secured by a lien on
the revenue of the entire system, and a reserve fund of $45,500
required to be funded over five years 440,000
North Dakota Public Finance Agency

Water System Improvement 2.5% Revenue Bonds Series 2004,

dated April 1, 2004, due in annual installments from $8,000 to

$12,000 beginning September 1, 2005 with interest due semi- N
annually on March 1 and September 1, secured by a [ien on the

revenue of the entire system, and a reserve fund of $13,500

required to be funded over five years 169,000
North Dakota Public Finance Agency

Water System Improvement 2.5% Revenue Bonds Series 2006,

dated January 23, 2006, due in annual installments from $48§,020

to $77,000 beginning September 1, 2006 with interest due semi-

annually on March 1 and September 1, secured by a lien on the

revenue of the entire system, and a reserve fund of $81,850

‘required to be funded over five years 1,047,000

470,000

178,000

1,095,020

2,539,086

Less current maturities 130,072

2,665,155
126,023

$ 2,409,014

$ 2,539,132

Maturities of bonds, notes and loans payable, which are subject to mandatory redemption, are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2010 § 130,072 h) 71,032 § 201,104
2011 137,401 67,239 204,640
2012 143,643 63,284 206,927
2013 144,923 59,230 204,153
2014 149,240 55,100 204,340
2015-2019 814,392 209,408 1,023,800
20202024 793,796 : 83,455 877,251
2025 -2028 225,619 6,794 232,413

$ 2,539,086 § 615,542 § 3,154,628
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

7. Defined Contribution Plan

The District sponsors a defined contribution pension plan beginning July 1, 1992, covering substantially all
of its employees who have completed eighteen months of employment.

Contributions are determined as 8% of each covered employee's salary up to $20,000 and 1% above
$20,000. In addition, the District will match up to 2% of employees’ contributions. Total pension expenses:

were 37,946 in 2009 and $7,296 in 2008,

8. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks including but not limited to losses from worker’s compensation and
general liability/property.

The District’s risk for worker’s compensation is covered by premiums paid to the North Dakota Workforce
Safety. The Bureau was created by the Legislature of the State of North Dakota. The District’s risk for
property coverage, liability coverage and fidelity bonds are covered by premiums paid for commercial

insurance coverage.

For insured programs, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settled claims from
these risks have not exceeded commercial coverage for the past three years.

9. Compensated Absences

Employees who have worked more than five years can receive up to 15 days of vacation. Employees who
have worked more than ten years can receive 15 days of vacation plus one day for each year worked after
that up to a2 maximum of 20 days. Vacation is calculated on the calendar vear and computed on December
31 of each year and must be used in the following calendar year. There is no carryover to a subsequent year.
As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, the liability for accrued vacation is approximately $6,836 and $5,994,

respectively, which have not been accrued on the books.

10. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. The restricted net asset amounts were as
follows:

2009 2008

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Net capital assets $ 8,126,285 $ 7,027,817

Debt as disclosed in note 6 (2,539,086) (2,665,154)

Account payable, construction project (994,529)

4,592,670 4,362,663

Restricted for Debt Service

Required reserve by ND Public Finance Agency 85,978 66,722
Unrestrictgd 565,819 733,265
Total Net Assets 55,244,467 $5,162,650
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT

Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

11. Construction Commitments

The District is currently working on the Great River Energy Spiritwood Station Reservoir construction
project. The District has signed construction agreements totaling $3,459,260 of which $847,151 has been
incurred up to June 30, 2009. The total balance due on the agreements is $2,612,109.

-18-
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

) 2009 2008
Operating supplies $ 18,338 6,039
Water purchase, Ramsey Rural Water 2,616 1,544
Power for pumping 53,729 47,403
Small tools expense 2,490 1,500
Chemicals 22,018 18,090
Repairs and maintenance 35,582 19,424
Mobile and site telephone 3,061 2,806
Water testing 1,604 - 935
Vehicle and travel expense 17,940 13,948
On call pay - 2,646
Consumer confidence report 728 327
Depreciation 264,098 261,670

Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses b 422,203 376,332

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2009 2008

Salaries 5 170,512 150,276
Payroll taxes : 14,779 13,587
Insurance, general 5,462 3,764
Insurance, group 52,771 44,388
Board and employee training 2,771 2,636
Office supplies and expense 2,231 2,612
Employee uniforms 921
Postage 5,725 5,280
Telephone 3,292 2,971
Professional services 19,594 28,433
Licenses, fees and permits 1,229 1,511
Directors' fees 11,582 9,880
Repairs and maintenance 3,352 3,631
Dues and subscriptions 1,619 1,535
Travel and meetings 1,074 1,815
Bad debts - 366 118
Utilities 3,555 3,517
Pension expense 7,246 7,296
Depreciation 6,887 7,061
Amortization 300 300
Miscellaneous . 6,422 6,010

Total Administrative Expenses 3 322,396 296,620
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

SCHEDULE OF MEMBERS
Number Amount
2009 ‘ 2008 Membership Fees 2009 2008

1,360  $50 Members (afier refunds) h 3 68,000

14 New 700
(184) Transfer to memberships no hookup (9,200)

(1,185) Transferto user fees (59,250)
(5) Terminated net of reinstated (250)

Balance

Membership Fees - No Curb Stops

1 $50 Members g 3 50
(1) Transfer to user fees ~ (50)
Balance
Users Fees

1,185 1,174  $350 Members (after refunds) $ 414,750 $ 352,200
28 16 New 9,800 4,800

2 New from nonqualified 700 59,250

1 New from Phase 111 350

(5) (5) Terminated (1,750) (1,500)
1,211 1,185  Balance 423,850 414,750

Users Fees - No Curb Stops

1 1 $350 Members 3 350 3 300
50
1 1 Balance 350 350
Forfeited member and user fees $ 81,200 $ 79,450
Memberships
184 184  Memberships no hookups 3 9,200 5 9,200
@) Transfer to user fees (100)
(3) Transfer to Phase ITI (150)
179 184 3 8,950 3 9,200
Memberships Phase III $ S
3 Transfer from nonqualified 150
468 New ~ 24,460
(H Transfer to user fees (50)
470 $ 24,560 b
Total Fees and Users Equity $ 538,910 $ 503,750
-20 -



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

SCHEDULE OF COSTS PER 1,000 GALLONS SOLD

2009 2008
Gallons Sold 88,757,182 87,276,530
Per 1,000 Per 1,000

. Gallons Gallons

Total Sold Total Sold
Operation and Maintenance Expenses b 158,105 5 1.78 3 114,662 b 1.31
Administrative Expenses 315,509 3.55 289,559 3.32
Interest Expense 76,984 0.87 84,094 0.96
Depreciation Expense 270,985 3.05 268,731 3.08

$ 821,583 $ 9.25 b 757,046 3 8.67
-21-



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - continued
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

SCHEDULE OF OPERATIONS - MANAGEMENT BASIS

2009 2008
REVENUE
Metered water sales § 301,208 3 293,845
Service charge 477,804 469,644
Other charges ' 70,667 45,039
Total Revenue 849,679 808,528
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
Operating supplies ' 18,338 6,039
Water purchase, Ramsey Rural Water 2,616 1,544
Power for pumping 53,729 47,403
Small tools expense 2,490 1,500
Chemicals 22,018 18,090
Repairs and maintenance ' 35,582 19,424
Mabile and site telephone ) 3,061 2,806
Water testing 1,604 935
Vehicle and travel expense 17,940 13,946
On call pay 2,645
Consumer confidence report 728 327
Depreciation 264,098 261,670
Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses 422,203 376,332
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries 170,512 150,276
Payroll taxes 14,779 13,587
Insurance, general 5,462 3,764
Insurance, group 52,771 44,388
Board and employee training 2,777 2,636
Office supplies and expense 2,231 2,612
Employee uniforms 92]
Postage 5,725 5,280
Telephone 3,292 2,971
Professional services 19,594 28,433
Licenses, fees and permits 1,229 1,511
Directors' fees 11,582 9,830
Repairs and maintenance 3,352 3,631
Dues and subscriptions 1,619 1,535
Trave] and meetings 1,074 1,815
Bad debts 366 118
Utilities 3,555 3,517
Pension expense 7,946 7,296
Depreciation 6,887 7,061
Amortization expense . 300 300
Miscellaneous . 6,422 6,010
Total Administrative Expenses 322,396 296,620
Total Expenses 744,599 672,952
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 3 105,080 5 135,576
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Schauen & Ogiﬁ,oaiafaij e

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Ronald R. Fuchs, CF
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  Duane R. Dunn, Gf
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS RobertA. Platz, Cf

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

We have andited the financial statements of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 and have issued our report thereon dated October 6, 2009. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purposes of
expressing our opinion on the financial statement, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the STUTSMAN RURAL

WATER DISTRICT’S internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'’S ability to initiate, authorize,
record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER
DISTRICT’S financial statements that is more than inconsequential W111 not be prevented or detected by the
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented
or detected by the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S internal control.

Qur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

" As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT'S
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

-4 -



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS — continued 2

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the District, the
Board of Directors, State Agencies and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution
of this report, which upon acceptance by the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, is a matter of

public record.

Selowe 5 Aore ot pe

SCHAUER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

October 6, 2009 ' .
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REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, ND

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2009. STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal programs is the responsibility of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S compliance based

on our audit,

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about STUTSMAN
RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on STUTSMAN
RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended

June 30, 2009.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered STUTSMAN
RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a major program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT’S internal control over compliance.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Ronald R, Fuchs, CF

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH Dwane R. Dunn, CF
Robert A, Piatz, CF



INDEPENDENT AUDITOS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB A-133 —continued 2

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a
remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type a compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

~

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the District, the
Board of Directors, State Agencies and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution
of this report, which upon acceptance by the STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT, is a matter of

public record.

SM}?‘{M,QC.

SCHAUER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

Qctober 6, 2009
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STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — continued
Year Ended June 30, 2009

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Federal Pass-through
Program Grant Title ' CFDA # Grantor’s #

Expenditures

Environmental Protection Agency
Passed Through State Department of Health
ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Clean Water
State Revolving Funds (1) (2) 66.458 380929-01

(1) Major program
(2) State Revolving Loan including commingled funds

Water system improvement revenue bonds series 2000
Water system improvement revenue bonds series 2004
Water system improvement revenue bonds series 2006

3 1,181,111

§ 440,000
169,000
1,047,000




STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

A. Summary of Audit Results

1.

8.

The auditors’ report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards. .

~

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statement of STUTSMAN RURAL
WATER DISTRICT were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Program and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular

A-133.

The Auditors’ Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Award Programs for
STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT expresses an unqualified opinion on all major
federal programs

There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for STUTSMAN
RURAL WATER DISTRICT.

The programs tested as major programs include:
66.458 — ARRA -Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds
The threshold for distinguishing Type A & B programs was $300,000.

STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT was determined not to be a low-risk auditee.

B. Findings Related to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

[. None

C. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards Which Must Include Audit Findings as
Defined in Section 510(a) of Circular A-133.

1. None

- 29 -



STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT
Jamestown, North Dakota
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of

STUTSMAN RURAL WATER DISTRICT and is presented on the full accrual basis of accounting,
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-

133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic

financial statements.
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